








19.8024.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

12/31/2018

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1116

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB 1116 adds health insurance companies into the assessment base when a long-term care insurance company 
insolvency occurs. This is necessary to ensure policyholders are more adequately covered by the life and health 
guaranty association in the event of a long-term care insurance company insolvency.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

This bill, as written, will have no fiscal impact.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

This bill has no fiscal impact.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

This bill has no fiscal impact.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

This bill has no fiscal impact.



Name: Melissa Seifert

Agency: Insurance Department

Telephone: 328-2930

Date Prepared: 01/04/2019





2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol 

HB 1116  
1/9/2019 

30597 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
North Dakota life & health insurance guaranty association. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on HB 1116. 
 
Matt Fischer~Interim Chief Examiner & Division Director of Company Licensing & 
Examinations:  Attachment 1. 
 
4:55 
 
Rep Adams:  Where does the money in the guarantee fund come from? 
 
Fischer:  Come from the assessments placed upon the insurer’s license in the state of ND. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Can you give an example of a safety net? 
 
Fischer:  Gives the example of a situation. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Gave a history on the guaranty funds for the new members on the 
committee who were not familiar with Guaranty Insurance.   
 
15:00 
 
Rep Kasper:  Could the department provide a summary of premium taxes collected of what 
types of insurers in the state of ND? 
 
Fischer:  Yes. 
 
Rep Kasper:  I would like to see the summary of the long term care insurers in the state of 
ND that you sold.  I would like a summary of annual premiums, number of covered lives of 
long term care companies.  Thirdly, if you can’t do so I would like a statement from the 
department who are on the watch list you are concerned with.  Whatever you can disclose. 
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Rep Bosch:  Is there a balance on the fund? 
 
Fischer:  Yes, it does have a fund but I don’t have that number right now. 
 
Rep Bosch:  If someone is on the watch list, what is the mechanism for adding to the fund.  
Is it something potentially happen or does it happen after the fact? 
 
Fischer:  That is up to their board of directors on the mechanics. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  If companies are on the watch list, can they continue to sell policies? 
 
Fischer:  If someone looks like they might be in trouble, we keep an eye on them.  It doesn’t 
preclude them from writing in our state.  In order to prevent them from writing, you would 
have to suspend their license.  We don’t want to do that in case they have a bad year. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  If someone is on the watch list, is someone watching the company to sell 
more to make a profit? 
 
Fischer:  We do keep track. 
 
Rep Kasper:  Can you give us the dollar amount of the premium guarantee association had 
to paid out over the last 20 years? 
 
Fisher:  I can do that. 
 
Rep Ruby:  The way the fund has been going up is through the percentages of the premium 
tax? 
 
Fisher:  No, the fund is built up over the assessments made upon the number of insurers. 
The premium tax offset is a completely separate function.   
 
Rep Ruby:  Are those assessments continually going on year by year? 
 
Fisher: As necessary. 
 
Rep Ruby:  What generates a reserve? 
 
Fischer:  It is possible that the guarantee fund will make an assessment & the liquidation 
process of the company.  It turns out that there are more funds available. In that case, the 
liquidation refunds will go back out to the guarantee funds because they make payments on 
a claim.  They also could potentially have over assess & hang on to that money. 
 
Rep Ruby:  Why are the secondary markets exempt? 
 
Fischer:  They are two different products. 
 
Rep Ruby:  What is all being repealed, which is 20 pages? 
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Fischer:  Reads from Century Code 26.1-38.1-7. 
 
Rep Ruby:  Is that what you follow currently, if there is a solvency & that was inadequate? 
 
Fischer:  It said how are we going to apply it & it boxed us in, in terms of when did this 
insolvency occur? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Gives a history. 
 
Rep Laning:  Are there any legal limits on the premium increases?  Are there any limitations 
on the increases? 
 
Fischer:  I’ll defer that question. 
 
Jon Godfread~Insurance Commissioner for the State of ND:  Talks about examples of 
the question asked.  This market is a mess & we are working on it. 
 
31:00 
 
Rep Laning:  Do these companies run these increases through your office? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes, we are one of the few states that has prior approval ability. 
 
Dennis Patroff~Represent the ND Health & Life:  Attachment 2.  We stand in support of 
the bill with one minor amendment. 
 
34:15   
 
Rep Ruby:  What is the reasoning for this? 
 
Dennis Pathroff:  Back in 2011 this language was added to the code & that was at a time 
when the guarantee association was determining whether or not that they would cover 
retained assets accounts.  It was decided that the guaranty association in fact cover those 
accounts.  It was added to insure that guarantee association could cover these supplemental 
contracts issued in relationship to these asset accounts.  We want to keep that in play 
because we are using that language that we are currently covering those retained asset 
accounts.  We want to continue to cover those retained asset accounts.  We want to leave 
that language in code. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Was this a mistake when it was taken out?  What was the intention of 
the department? 
 
Dennis Pathroff:  I can’t answer that question. 
 
Rep Kasper:  What is a retained asset account? 
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Patroff:  A retained asset account is an account whose initial balance is a life insurance 
death benefit that operates like a checking account.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  Matt, can you come to the podium?  Why did you want this out? 
 
Matt Fischer:  It was an oversight on our part. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  So it does provide more coverage. 
 
Matt Fischer:  Yes. 
 
Megan Houn~Director of Government Relations for BCBS of ND:  We are supporting 
this bill. 
 
Matt Schafer~MEDICA Health Plans:  We support this bill. 
 
Levi Andrus~Represent American Council of Life Insurers:  Attachment 3.  We support 
this bill.  
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here in support of HB 1116, opposition, neutral position? 
Closes the hearing.  What are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep Ruby:  Moves the amendment presented by Dennis Pathroff. 
 
Rep Adams:  Second. 
 
Voice vote-motion carried. 
 
Rep Adams:  Make a motion for a Do Pass as Amended. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion? 
 
Roll call was taken on HB 1116 for a Do Pass as Amended with 13 yes, 0 no, 1 absent 
& Rep Ruby is the carrier. 
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31329 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
North Dakota life & health insurance guaranty association. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1116. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We need a motion to reconsider HB 1116. 
 
Rep Laning:  Makes a motion to reconsider HB 1116. 
 
Rep Adams:  Second. 
 
Voice vote ~ motion carried. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  The bill was brought back because of the fiscal note.  I think the exposure 
in this stage is considerable of what they indicated.  I did meet & grudging accepted the 
argument. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We do have HB as amended before us, what are the wishes of the 
committee? 
 
Rep Bosch:  Moves a Do Pass as Amended. 
 
Rep Adams:  Second. 
 
Roll call was taken for a Do Pass as Amended with 12 yes, 0 no, 0 absent & Rep D 
Ruby is the carrier. 
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Job #32664 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Amy Crane 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the North Dakota life and health insurance guaranty association; and relating to 
application of laws to an insolvent insurer; and to provide for application. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-2 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on HB 1116. All members were present.  
 
Matt Fischer, Chief Examiner & Director of Company Licensing & Examinations, North 
Dakota Insurance Department: see attachment #1 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(4:54)Chairman Klein: Just so we understand how the process would work. It’s been this 
long-term care portion of the business which has been actuarially unsound and now we’re 
losing some of those folks. Do you want to explain to us how the guarantee fund works? 
 
Matt: How the process works right now is, the guarantee association was created in 1983 
they are allowed to make two types of assessments; a class A which is or administrative 
expenses to run the association, the day to day operations. And the class B assessments 
are made when an insolvency occurs and the association needs to pay out losses to policy 
holders or claimants. So when an insolvency occurs, just because it occurs does not mean 
the guarantee association is even going to have to pay a dime. Because as insurance 
regulators we would enter into hopefully rehab the company, get it back on its fee. We could 
potentially sell the company or blocks of business to keep the company alive. However, if it 
gets into liquidation, the odds of hitting the guarantee association are increased. However, 
even then, the business is still run. So people still make their premium payments, and claims 
are still paid. When all those funds are exhausted, that’s when the guarantee association 
would kick in. We’ve had some long-term care insurers, have started to go insolvent. Some 
of them in the guarantee association are making preparation for them and that’s why this bill 
is being drafted as it is to broaden that assessment base. Right now, if a long-term care 
insurer goes insolvent, only life-insurers are getting hit with any class B assessments that 
might be made by the associations. And really the long-term care product is more of a health 
product so the idea was Let’s bring the health insurers in here so they can share in the 
assessment base if these happened.  Going back to how it works, the guarantee association 
is the very last resort, if we exhaust everything that the company has, there is nothing left 
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and they have claimants out there that have claims, that’s when the guarantee association 
is going to step in.  
 
Chairman Klein: Then they assess the industry the money is not like a yearly fee. It’s not a 
pot of cash sitting at NEIC with all their other money?  
Matt: That’s correct. The assessments are made when necessary, however the NEIC has 
nothing to do with the guarantee associations. The money doesn’t sit there; the money sits 
in our North Dakota guarantee association. We also have a PNC guarantee so the money 
sits in those associations in North Dakota it is not administered by a federal program or a 
national program. They just all have the same goal.  
 
Chairman Klein: Are the insureds made whole or just up to a particular level?  
Matt: They are made whole up to a particular level.  
 
Chairman Klein: So if they thought they were getting $100,000 you would guarantee it up to 
a percentage.  
Matt: No, there’s whole number limits within the bill already, those are already in there. 
There’s different limits based on the policy types. Some are $300,000 some are $500,000. 
Those individuals that may have $1 million life insurance policy, you’re not gonna get a 
millions dollars, I believe you’re capped out at $300,000 for life insurance policies.  
 
Dennis Pathroff, North Dakota Health and Life Guaranty Association: testified in support 
of the bill. We did work with the department in crafting some of the language and we want to 
be on record supporting this bill.  
 
Chairman Klein: So the 50/50 comment was that a negotiated item that you did? 
Dennis: Not that we took part in.  
 
Levi Andrist, American Council of Life Insurers:  Testified in support of the bill. The result 
of this bill was over a year’s long process at the national level among life insurers, health 
insurers, HMOs and others. And we’re very supportive of the bill. (See attachment #2 for 
additional testimony).  
 
Megan Houn, BlueCross BlueShield of North Dakota: Testified in support of the bill. 
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on HB 1116.  
 
Senator Kreun: Moved a Do Pass.  
 
Senator Roers: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Klein: Any other discussion? 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa will carry the bill.  
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